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The Honorable Chairman and
Members of Williamsburg County Council
Kingstree, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business -
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information for Williamsburg County, South Carolina as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Williamsburg County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Williamsburg County Alcohol & Drug Abuse
Commission special revenue fund, which represents 10 percent and 11 percent, respectively, of the
assets and revenues of the other governmental funds. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the basic financial
statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in the other governmental fund column for
the Williamsburg County Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission is based solely on the report of the

other auditors,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the provisions of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Anauditalso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit, and the report of other auditors, provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our report and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Williamsburg County. South Carolina as of June 30,
2008, and respective changes in the financial position and cash flows, thereof for the year then ended
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in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
30, 2009 on our consideration of Williamsburg County’s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
important for assessing the resuits of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information are not a required
part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The supplemental information, as
listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements of Williamsburg County, South Carolina. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and other
auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion. based on our report and
the report of other auditors, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

NO/L/OMJ Pd&@/)q\‘ mmﬂ.,ﬁ’ﬂ*

Harper, Poston & Moree, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Georgetown, South Carolina
January 30, 2009
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Williamsburg County, South Carolina, we offer readers of the County's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Williamsburg County for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. All amounts, uniess otherwise indicated, are expressed in
thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

‘0

*

The assets of Williamsburg County exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2008 by $33,113
(net assets). Of this amount, $2,757 may be used to meet the government's ongoing

obligations to citizens and creditors.

% The government's total net assets increased by $749 during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008 with a $140 decrease resulting from business-type activities and governmental
activities experiencing an increase of $889.

% As of the close of the current fiscal year, Williamsburg County's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $9,725. Approximately 41% of this total
amount of $3,974 is available for spending at the government's discretion (unreserved fund
balance).

% As of the close of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was
$4,319 or 21% of the total general fund expenditures.

be

hS

Williamsburg County's long-term debt decreased by $905 (8%) during the current fiscal
year. The main component of this decrease is the pay off of certain capital leases in the
prior year and the reduction of capital lease purchases in 2008. The Bond Anticipation
Note purchased last year was reissued in 2008 with a principal reduction of $204.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Williamsburg County’s basic
financial statements which are comprised of three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements, and
3. Notes to the financial statements

This report also contains other supplementary financial information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. Government-wide financiai statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the financial position of Williamsburg County and are
similar to private sector financial statements. They include a statement of net assets and a
statement of activities. These statements appear on pages 13 and 14 of this report.

Component units, which are other governmental units over which the County {the County Council,
acting as a group) can exercise influence and/or may be obligated to provide financial subsidy, are
presented as a separate column in the government-wide statements and as combining statements
of net assets and of activities in the fund financial statements. The focus of the statements is
clearly on the Primary Government and the presentation allows the user to address the relative
relationship with the Component Unit. For those readers interested in more information on the
component unit, contact information is provided in Note 1. A. on pages 26 and 27 of this report.
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The Statement of Net Assets shows the County's assets less its liabilities at June 30, 2008. The
difference between these assets and liabilities is reported as net assets. Changes in net assets
over time may be helpful in indicating an improving or deteriorating financial position. Some
included items, such as accounts payable or earned but unused vacation leave, will produce
changes in cash in a future fiscal period,

The Statement of Activities follows the Statement of Net Assets and presents information showing
how the net assets changed during the fiscal year. The statement presents all underlying events,
which give rise to the change, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Both statements attempt to distinguish functions of Williamsburg County that are principally
supported by taxes and inter-governmental revenues (governmentat activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities).

Governmental activities reported in the statements include generai government, public safety,
public works, health and welfare, economic development, culture and recreation, and
environmental services (landfill). Major business activities include water and sewer, transit system,
and a countywide E-811 communication system.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Like other
state and local governments, Williamsburg County uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All funds of Williamsburg County
can be divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds, presented on pages 15 through 18, essentially
account for the same functions as those reported under government-wide statement of net assets
and statement of activities. However, this set of financial statements focuses on events that
produce near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on the baiance of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year and is a narrower focus than the
government-wide financial statements. Such information may be useful in evaluating Williamsburg
County’s near-term financing requirements and available resources.

By comparing functions between the two sets of statements for governmental funds and
governmental activities, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation
to faciiitate this comparison.

Governmental funds individually presented in Williamsburg County’s statements include four major
funds, the General Fund, the Rural Fire Fund, the Landfill Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. The
smaller governmental funds in Williamsburg County government are Capital Projects Fund, Federal
and State Grant Fund, Road & Bridges Fund, Industria! Park Fund, Sheriff Special Fund and
Williamsburg County Alcohol & Drug Abuse Fund. They have been presented in a total column
termed as “other governmental funds”. Their detail can be reviewed on pages 57 and 58.

Proprietary funds. Williamsburg County maintains and presents proprietary funds for three
enterprises, Water and Sewer, Transit Authority and E-911, shown on pages 19 through 23 of this
report.

Enterprise funds report in greater detai! the same information presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements for Water and Sewer, Transit, and E-911.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources heid for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support Williamsburg County’s
own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary
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funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24 and 25 of this
report.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Notes
are presented on pages 26 through 50.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. In the case of Williamsburg County, assets exceed liabilities by $33,113 at the close of
the June 30, 2008 fiscal year.

: Of this amount, $24,981 (75%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, building,
i machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is stiil
outstanding. Williamsburg County uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens:
- consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the County's
_i investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate those liabilities.

! An additional portion of the County's net assets, $4,044 (12%) represents restrictions for Landfill
Closure and Post Closure and $1,331 (4%) represents restrictions for debt service. The remaining
balance of the unrestricted net assets is $2,757 (8%) may be used to meet the government's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Al the end of the current fiscal year, Williamsburg County is able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
i governmental and business-type activities.

Wiltiamsburg County’s Net Assets
June 30, 2008
{Recapped from page 13)

i Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
: 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
% Current and other assets 11,919 12,488 1,852 3.678 3 13.771 % 15,566
ot Capital assets 17,273 17.560 16,098 15,263 3 33,371 3 32,823
i . Total assets 29,182 30,048 17.950 18,341 $ 47,142 ) 48,389
; Long-term fiabilities - ] -
j outstanding 1.296 2,135 98 297 $ 1304 $ 2432
s Gther liabilities 11,929 12,834 706 757 3 12,635 3 13.591
% Total liabilities 13,225 14,969 804 1,054 3 14,029 ] 16,023
- Net Assets: -
______ Invested in capitai assets, -
i net of related debt 9,526 8,769 15,455 14,571 $ 24 931 3 23,340
- Restricted for Landfill $ - 3 -
closure and post closure 4,044 3,608 3 4,044 3 3,606
7 Restricted - other 1301 1.230 30 14 $ 1331 $ 1244
Unrestricted 1,006 1,472 1.661 2,701 § 2,757 $ 4,173
N Total net assets 15,967 3 15,077 17,146 3 17,286 3 33,113 § 32.363
- 5




Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the County's net assets by $889.
Of this increase, $650 was monies transferred to the business-type activities for general operation.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the County’s net assets by $140,
accounting for 19% of the reduction in the government's net assets. Combined increase of Net
Assets is $749.

Williamsburg County, South Carolina
Changes in Net Assets (Recapped)
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2008

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services 2,959 2,951 2457 2,063 $ 5416 $ 5014
Operating grants and $ - 3 -
contributions 3,161 1,881 659 757 $ 3,820 $ 2638
Capital grants and $ - 5 -
contributions - 932 502 683 $ 502 $ 1,665
General revenues: $ - $ -
Property taxes 11,073 11,894 $11,073 $11,804
Cther taxes 2,065 1.994 $ 2085 $ 1,994
Local government fund 2,107 1,866 $ 2,107 $ 1,866
Other revenue 768 1,128 $ 768 $ 1128
Investment earnings 217 241 51 58 $ 268 $ 299
Total Revenue 22,350 22,937 3,669 3,561 26,019 26,498
Expenses:
Program Activities:
Government Activities:
General government 7.792 6,679 7,792 6,679
Public safsty 4,802 4,526 4,802 4,526
Public works 1,872 1,578 1,872 1,578
Health and welfare <2210 2,183 2,210 2,183
Economic development 1,037 692 1,037 692
Culture and recreation 512 734 512 734
Environmental services 1,712 1.488 1,712 1.488
Agency contributions 560 566 560 566
Interest and other charges 314 488 314 486
Business-type activities: - -
Water and Sewer Fund 1,080 1,377 1,080 1,377
Transit System 2,393 2,053 2,393 2,053
E-911 Fund 987 802 987 802
Total Expenses 20,811 18,932 4,460 4.232 25,271 23.164
Transfers (650) {635) 650 635 - -
Increase in Net Assets 1,539 3,387 {790) (35) 749 3,332
Net Assets 07/01/2007 15,078 11,711 17.286 17.321 32,364 29,032
Net Assets 06/30/2008 $ 15967 5 15,078 17,146 §17,.286 $ 33,113 $ 32,364

Property tax revenues decreased by 7% due partially to the last decrease in vehicle taxes and the
reduction of business personal property tax from DOR. The $1.280 increase in grant revenue was
primarily from increased activity with Public Works and Public Safety grants. All other revenue
sources experienced slight increases in the year giving the combined increase in net assets of
$749.




Program revenues are derived directly from the program. They reduce the net cost of the function
to be supported from the county's general revenue sources. In 2008 there were no program solely

N funded by their program revenues.

Program Revenues and Expenses - Governmental Activities
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Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities
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For the most part, increases in expenses for business-type funds closely paralleled inflation and
growth in the demand for services. Increases in expenses were generated primarily from fuel costs
and in the Water and Sewer Authority costs associated with contractual fees. There were transfers
of $650 to the business-type funds to offset overages in expenditures from grants and various

sources.
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, Williamsburg County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year,

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Wiliamsburg County's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $9,725, an increase of $371(3%) from the previous year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. Atthe end of the current fiscal year the
total fund balance of $4,318 for the general fund was unreserved. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be usefui to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 20% of total general fund
expenditures. The net increase in the fund balance of the general fund was $1,140 during the
current year. There was Operating Transfers In in the amount of $1 1334 from Debt Service for the
purpose of reimbursing the general fund for debt payments and reimbursement from Public Works
for expenditures. Operating transfers {Out) from the general fund were $1,534,

The rural fire fund has a total fund balance of $42, of which all of the fund balance is unrestricted
funds.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $1,404, all of which is reserved for the payment
of debt service. A decrease of $748 results from a $264 decrease in taxes collected for the fiscal
year that is to pay fiscal year debt payments and an increase of debt service payments.

The remaining speciai revenue funds and capital projects funds have a combined total fund
balance of $3,961. The landfill closure fund has a fund balance of $4,044. The other governmental
funds included in the above totals had a combined fund balance of $374. $70 is unreserved.

Proprietary funds. The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail, See pages 19 through 23,

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer System at the end of the year amounted to $269
and the Transit System totaled $1,916. The E-911 Fund experienced a negative unrestricted nat
asset of $524, primarily due to the transfers due to the general fund for operating expenses not
Covered by subscriber fees. The net assets for the Water and Sewer System increased $317. The
Transit net assets decreased $198. E-911 experienced a decrease in net assets of $260 due from
an increase in operating revenues of $35 but a greater increase in operating expenses of $260.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There was an approximately 1% ($201) decrease in appropriations between the original budget
and the final amended budget shown on pages 58 and 59 of this report. The major contributor to
the decrease in revenues was from current tax collections ($1,137). This decrease did not affect
the current budget spending but decreased the year end reserve that was anticipated during
budget process.




Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Williamsburg County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of June 30, 2008 amounted to $33,371 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery
and equipment, roads, and construction in progress. The total increase in the County’s investment
in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 2%. Both governmental activities and business-type
activities experienced an increase in capital assets for the fiscal year.

Major capital assets events during the current year included the following:
* Various capital assets purchased for other departments.

* Land improvements to various facilities.
* Paving of county-owned roads.

Capital Assets for Governmental and Business-type Activities

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Land 1,720 1,679 148 148 $ 1,868 $ 1,827
Land improvements 2,397 2,454 0 0 $ 2,397 $ 2,454
Buildings 3,957 3,829 38 44 $ 3,995 $ 3,973
Building

improvements 2,373 2,421 51 57 $ 2424 $ 2478
Roads & Bridges 3,145 2,438 $ 3,145 $ 2,438
Water Distribution

System 12,955 13,333 $ 12,955 $13,333
Leasehold

improvements 204 227 $ 204 $ 227
Furniture &

fixtures 905 8934 140 159 $ 1,045 $ 1,093
Machinery &

equipment 741 1,131 81 51 $ 822 $ 1182
Automotive

equipment 1,775 2,309 980 943 $ 2,755 $ 3252
Communication

equipment 57 37 549 527 $ 606 $ 564
Construction '

in progress 1,155 0 $ 1,155 $ -
Total $ 17,274 $ 17,559 $ 16,097 § 15282 $ 33,371 $ 32,821

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 34 through
36 of this report.
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Williamsburg County had total bonded debt
outstanding of $8,390 backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

Williamsburg County Bonded Debt

] Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
i General obligation
- bonds 4,140 4,504 4,140 4,504
oy Unamortized Premium 20 22 20 22
|| Bond anticipation
= notes 1586 1,790 1,586 1,790
, Revenue bonds 494 501 494 501
[ J Total bonds payable 5,746 6,316 494 501 6,240 6,817
Capital leases 2,002 2,489 148 192 2,150 2,691

N Total 7,748 8,815 642 693 8,390 9,508
i

o The County’s total bonded debt decreased by $1,118 (12%) during the current fiscal year, primarily
as a result of the retirement of severai capital leases and the reduction of $204 in principal for the
Bond Anticipation Note,

Williamsburg County maintains a ‘BBB’ rating from Standards & Poor's Rating group and a ‘Baa3’
rating from Moody’s Investors Service for its most recent general obligation bond (2004).

South Carolina statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue
(without referendumy) to 8% of its total assessed value. The current general obligation (G.0.) debt
limit for Williamsburg County General Fund is $6,988. The current general cobligation bonds
subject to the legal debt limitation is $4,133 for the General Fund. The bonds for the Rural Fire
Debt are not considered as part of the County's legal debt limit but are considered as part of the
Rural Fire District.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in note 8 on pages 38 through
41 of this report.

B Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

% The 2008 annual average unemployment rate for Williamsburg County is 10.77%. This
- represents a reduction in the 10 year average unemployment rate reported previously
which was 12.1% despite the fact that the unemployment rate for the State of South
Carolina has continued to spiral.

< New projects that have been announced during 2008. These projects are Sykes
N Corporation with the investment of approximately $5,000,000 and employing over 400
associates to full time jobs and Williamsburg Recycling has announced that it will invest
$2,000,000 and eventually hire 25-50 employees.

e ** Project Shrimp, Project Russ, Project ARC Technology, Project Bercik, Project Knowledge,
Project Canton, and Project Bamboosa have committed to Williamsburg County and are
completing financing of these projects.

11
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Expansions in three companies during 2008 has provided approximately 150 new jobs and
increased capital investments to approximately $6,000,000. Martek continues to invest
miltions in their $250,000,000 Williamsburg County facility.

.
b

In 2008 Williamsburg County has raised $100,000 through grants to purchase additional
property for the Hemingway Commerce Center.

% Williamsburg County has currently three industrial parks located in Kingstree, Hemingway
and Salters, South Carolina. There are two speculative buildings available for qualifying
prospects.

*,

!

100 acres has been added to the existing Williamsburg Commerce Centre at a cost of
$1,000,000. This expenditure will not increase Williamsburg County property taxes.

.

b

Williamsburg County passed a balanced budget for the fiscal year 2008, increasing general
operating millage by 2 mils as allowed by the Local Government Fiscal Authority Act (Act
409 of 1997, as amended. Debt Service millage for fiscal year 2008 was decreased 1 mill
in order to give Williamsburg Technical College an additional 1 mill for their operational
needs.

-

-

There were no rate increases for any of the business-type activities (water and sewer,
transit system or E-911) for fiscal year 2007-2008. There will be a rate increase in fiscal
year 2008-2009 for Water & Sewer.

Requests for Information:

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Williamsburg County’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government's financing. Questions concerning any
of the information shouid be addressed to Phyliis B. Underwood, Williamsburg County
Controller, P.O. Box 330, Kingstree, SC 29556,
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J WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
, STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
| JUNE 30, 2008

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

} GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL LNIT
ASSETS
l Cash ) 2.16:4.819 3 1.087247 § 3.552.066 § 132.572
‘ Investments 0 1.335.387 1.335.387 0
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance
: for Uincollectibles) 0 28.485 28485
l Court Fines Receivable (Net) 55126 0 35.126 0
! Taxes Receivable (Net of Allowance
for Uncollectibles) 1,131,462 0 [LE31.462 0
; Due From Others 2.384 0 2.884 (
L Due From State 314.759 0 314.759 0
L Prepuid Assets 0 0 0 16.657
Other Receivables [.353.755 136,161 1.489.916 0
v Internal Balances 843.887 (843.887) 0 0
J tnventories 33.722 71.212 104,934 0
b Deferred Charges 133.765 0 133.763 0
Interest Receivable 0 8.020 8.020 0
Temporarily Restricted Assets:
P Cush and Investments 5,384,587 30.000 5.614,587 0
il Cupital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation):
Land 1.719.570 148.000 1.867.570 0
] Construction in Progress 0 1,154,961 1.154.961
! Land Improvements 2,356,920 0 2.396.920 U
Roads & Bridges 3.144.926 ] 3,144,926 0
Buildings 3.956.835 38.097 3,994,932 o
= Building Improvements 2,372,609 51,921 2,424,530 0
| Leasehold Improvements 204,118 0 204.118 0
| Water & Wastewater System 0 12,955,166 12,953,160 i}
Furniture & Fixtures 905,407 139,495 1.044,902 61,178
Machinery & Equipment 740,670 81,487 822.157 22.004
Automotive Equipment 1.775,325 979.715 2.755.040 49.865
Communication Equipment 57.344 548,879 606,223 0
TOTAL ASSETS b3 29.192.490 § 17950346 § 47,142,836 § 282,270
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 621.116 87.606 708,722 670
Due to Others 382,934 0 382,934 0
Accrued Interest Payable 103.890 833 106.725 8]
- Accrued Salaries and Related Fringes 148,496 0 148,496 2439
Deterred Revenue 37.843 a 37.843 0
! Customer Deposits 0 9.800 9,800 0
Noncurrent {Liabilitics:
5 Due Within One Year 1.686.675 65.986 1.732.661 9473
i Due In More Than One Year 10,242,341 640.036 10,882,377 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES g 13,225,295 § 804.263 3 14.029.558 § 12.602
NET ASSETS
_____ Invested In Capital Assets. Net Of Related Debt 9.325.715 15,434,932 24.986.647 133,047
Restricted For;
Restricted Landfill Closure & Post Closure Costs 4.043.617 0 4.043.617 0
Restricted Debt 1.301.456 30.000 1.331.456 0
B Unrestricted 1.096,407 1,661,151 2.757.538 136.627
{ TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 15.967.195 § 17.146,083 $ 33113278 § 269.674
{ The Accompanying Notes i\ge an Integral Part of this Statement




WIWIELG S JO Ued JeaFa1u] ue ade saton fudundioaoy ay |

vL9°69C $§ BLTEITEC 4 (R09FT LI § Sal196°¢] % AL JO PUH S LASSY LAN
16’9zt 1€97v9£7C¢ SCFIRTLY Q0T RLOCT Tea 3 Jo JumarEag S LSSy LAN
(9eT°LE) § LYO8RL § (Zreorl ) $ GRG'88Y % SLASSY LN NI SAONYH)
6180LT § CROTRTOL § €Li10L $ TI60RSSIT $ SULASNVIEL ANV ‘SWALE AYVNITHOVHLXH
'SWALI TVIDES ‘SAOINTAAY TVHT DAVILIOL
[H 0 0¥ 089 (£0r°DE9)
0 960°LY 0 960°LY ANUIARY SNOIUENISIY
616 TER'ROT 0LE1E 9FLIE Jsa5u]
0 FEROTL 0 +18°0TL SOXE | pRIpLg AT
0 8RELOI'T 0 8RE°LOIT PUN.] UIILINAOD) 2307
0 SLOE9D'T 0 CLO'S90'T xug sawg uendey ooy
000°0LT 0 4] 4] WBUILIDAC ATBLILL] WO SUOLHGLIND
0 $ 08K'ELOIT % O $ O8ECLOLI $ SNt
SHINTATY TVHANTD
(eeL1te) % Q $ 3rFeel $ IF9LL § rPROSE % nup wauedeor) o |,
(SSiiet) g 0 $ SFFSE § TPl $RRGRT 8 Amxqr) fiuno)) Sigswet)p
ne;y uanaduo: )
0 % (SE0°FPECST) § (ST THRY § (€26 169°F1) % 00fTOS $ 080nI8E S 9l09IF ¢ $§ FOFILTCT % MWNDULIA0L) Lavulaf (upo g, <
i $(sTTcrs) _ $ (Si0cr) $ 0 $_00E 208 $ £15859 $ 9LELCFZ  § FOCOOFE % SOINANDY DAL | -SsaUrsngT [0 |
0 (€L8°COL) (€L87¢0y) 0 0 0 LO1718T CLIYLYG PUR 1163
] (€81°8EH) (£81°8¢+) 0 ] EIS7859 S11'96%°1 I8 T6ET wasdy nsuet), Auno;y Singswen g,
0 £re'10€ CFE10E 0 00£'708 0 FTYO8Y IREORO'| PUL,| I0MAY 3 1310 AL
Saniany adA ] -ssautsng
0 $ (e26'169F1) % 0 § (£26'169°F () $ 0 §_LESO91E §_UBORSA T & OPTTIROE % SMIANDY [FIUNILIDAOTY [210],
0 t168°c1E} 0 ClegEle} 0 0 0 [68°C1€ SRR FAE) pue saimuy
G (ZR0°095) ] (Z80°09¢) 0 0 0 TR0°09¢ SUOING IR0 Asuady
0 (£98°0¢8) 0 (£98°0c8) o} ORI FLOGLL OFITIL L HUPURT - SO01AING [N AL
1] (60T'61t) 0 S.om.”m [+) 0 CFF'LY 6LE°CT SEOTIC UONERINY 3¢ [RIMB Y
0 (861°05t) 0 (861°05¢) 0 ££9'08¢ 0 1£8°980°1 Wawde[PAdL] Dpuouea;]
0 {1L£°9011) 0 (1LL°901°1) 0 £9ILTS 1T9L8 SHIOtT e SADNAIBG URNE R IR
0 (9£0°81¢) [ (9£0°81¢) 4] THLRLO'( 9LLbLE FISTTLR 5410 dygny
] (Lr9'8sh'D) 0 (L¥9'8SFE) 0 £LL7¢89 166659 1T TOR fageg aygnyg
0 $ OZTTHTL) % 0 $ (9zTpT'L) $ 0 $ 8L6'P01 $ 68¢TFY § fosTInL % WFWLUIIAOTY [R13UD
Y RIUBILLIADD
BUSLUNE XTI WL TRR |
LINN TV.LOL SALLIALLOY SHLLIALLDY SNOLLOAIYMINOD SNOLENGININOD SAMNAUAS SASNTJINA SHYADOUI/SNOLLINLL
LNANOJINOD JdAL-SSANIS(IE  TVINFWNYIAOD ANV SINVYD a SENVHD HO4
INFANUMIAOD AYVINIHD TY.LIdYD INLLYYAdO SEDUVHD

SLUSSY LAN NESTONVHD SAINIATY KVEHOUd

ANV (ASNAEXA) ANNAATY 1IN

800Z '9€ ANNF AIANT UVIA THL 404
SALLIALLDY 4O INIWALVIS

P s ol




WD SIYL [0 LiRg [eldaqu) ue axe satopn Sut{usdwosoy oy §

¥80°19<°Z1 § coLeeR $ esTrTs § LSKOLTY $ coroel § 0iT60LE % FONVTIVIH AN ANV SHLLPHEVET TV LOL
COP'ETL’S $ 608'rLE $ 868°E0p) $ 00598¢°¢ $ syTTr § o1s81EF $ ADONVIVE AN TVILOL
LSTPLEE 98E°0L 0 (L86'95t) sror 0ISgICT passasaun
SOl €947 0 0 0 0 sioatoly endeny Jof POAIASDY
9Cr'89T 9E+"89¢ 0 0 ] ¢ spafaly eods 1) paasasay]
LY EROY 0 0 LBFEPO'Y 0 0 $150.) 2INSO[) 10} PAAIasaY
TTL'EE TTLeE ] ] 0 0 AIOWBAUL 10§ paaIDsay
868°C0F°1 0 868°€0F1 0 0 0 DOIALIG 13¢} JOf PAAIDEDY
HANVIVE GNNA
619°CE8T $ 98F°18) § 1eg'6ll § L86689 $ SCIFST $ 00970671 $ SHLLITEIVIT TVIOL
066'906 0 16E°611 899°811 weee 680°€19 ANUDADY PALIDA(]
96+ 1 068°1 0 0 0 909°9+1 F[qRAL,| siauag
¥ sainp, paniaoy
Fe6ese 0 0 0 0 PE6'ERE £IAW() o1 2n(]
€80'9LL ¥8s°coz 0 €9z Eee PETHE 0 SpUn.y 1A1§10) 01 (]
911°129 TI9LT 0 Fe0'8s 6L0°68 1L6°LT ajqeArg simonay
SHLLYTIEVI
b
AONVIVE AN ANV STLLI'IE VI
$80°195°1 $ seLcey $ 68Cres’l $ LBYOLTY § c0+96t $ oi1enL’s 5 SLASSY TVIOL
0L6°619°1 0 T0T0¢ 0 0 8968571 SPUTL] IAYI() Wos] ang
TeLee TTLCE ] 0 0 0 AIowaau]
6SLPIE 0 0 0 0 6SLFIE HUBWLIDADY) MBS w0y angg
ceLest’l P66°81S 0 gceog 0 £0T8FL SOIQRAIIIOY IO
I 0 FIg16l 8LE0T1 £51'08 LOT'EEL {20URMA||Y JO FIN) DRAINYGY soXT
¥88°C ) 0 ] 0 ¥88°C SIDUI(Y Wolg angg
IANYY {1 0 0 0 9zl'ce {(PaUmMON Y o 1aN)
A[ARALIISY SAUL,| 1IN0
L8S'FECS 0 9SH I0E"T LI9'EFOY 0 FIC6ET PalLsny 1sey
618°%9+°T § 6L0°C0E $ Ln $ retoel § ov6cll $ 6PLCTOT 5 sty
SLASSY
SANA SANNA AN aNI1 A
TVINANWNYIAOD TV.INIIWNHAAOD ADIAYAS TILIANYT A TVENY
TVIOL HIALLO La1aqa
8007 '0€ ANNT
SANNA TVINANNEIAQOD
LATHS AINVIVY

¥NITOUYD HENOS *AINTOD DHAESINYIT A




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CARQLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL

L FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
- JUNE 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because :
o Ending fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet 5 9.725465

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not tinancial resources and, therefore,
1 ‘ are not reported in the funds. 17.273.724

Other long-term assets, such as property taxes, court fines, and ambulance fees are not
available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 869.147

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable (net of prentiums and issuance costs), capital
leases, compensated absences, and accrued interest, are not due and payable in the current

[ period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (11,901,141

Net assets of governmental activities $ 15,967,195

f l The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of this Statement
L 16
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This amount is the amount by which depreciation expense
exceeded capital outlay in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities, such as property taxes. ambulance fees and police fines that
will not be collected for several months after year end and do not provide for current financiai resources,
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however. has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items,

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities, such as compensated absences, accrued
interest, and amortization of bond premiums and issuance costs, do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds.

371,918

(248.025)

(112,627)

1,082,866

(205,143)

Change in net assets of governmental activities 3

888,989

The Accompanying Notes are art Integral Part of this Staternent
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash b
investments
Restricted Cash & Investments
Inventory
Accrued Interest Receivable
Accounts Receivable, Net
of Allowance
Receivable - Other

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Land $
Construction in Progress
Water & Sewer Systemn
Furniture and Fixtures
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Buildings & Improvements
Land Improvements
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

NET PROPERTY. PLANT,
AND EQUIPMENT 8

TOTAL ASSETS $

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of this Statement

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER WILLIAMSBURG
& SEWER  COUNTY TRANSIT E911
FUND SYSTEM FUND FUND TOTAL
269,505 586,115 § 231.627 § 1.087,247
0 1.335.387 0 1.335.387
30,000 0 0 30,000
0 71,212 0 71,212
875 7,145 0 8,02
14,420 14,065 0 28,485
867 118,663 16,631 136,161
315,667 2,132,587 § 248258 § 2,696,512
120,000 28,000 § 08 148,000
1,154,961 0 0 1,154,961
14,838,901 0 0 14,838,901
0 0 315,917 315,917
0 502,270 744,019 1,246,289
0 3,022,777 0 3,022,777
0 171,094 110,102 281,196
0 13,444 0 13,444
(1,883,735) (2,623,118) (416,911) (4,923.764)
14,230,127 1,114,467 § 753,127 $ 16,097,721
14,545,794 $ 3,247,054 $ 1,001,385 $ 18,794,233

19



WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
o STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

| PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER WILLIAMSBURG
& SEWER COUNTY TRANSIT E911
FUND SYSTEM FUND FUND TOTAL
LIABILITIES
SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 4,138 % 81,704 % 1,764 3§ 87.606
Due to Other Funds 0 105,968 737919 843,887
Compensated Absences Payable 369 7.345 6,864 14,578
Bonds Payable - RDA 5,767 1] 0 5.767
- (Capital Leases Payable 0 0 45,641 45,641
| Accrued Interest Payable 835 0 0 835
E J Customer Deposits 9,800 0 0 9,800
TOTAL SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES § 20,909 § 195017 § 792,188 § 1,008,114
: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
= Compensated Absences Payable £, 106 22,036 25,513 48,655
| Capital Leases Payable 0 0 102,711 102,711
i Bonds Payable - RDA 488,670 0 0 488,670
] ' TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES $ 489,776 § 22,036 % 128,224 % 640,036
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 510,685 % 217053 § 920,412 % 1,648,150
NET ASSETS
n
" Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 13,735,690 1,114,467 604,775 15,454,932
- Restricted for Debt Service 30,000 0 0 30,000
Unrestricted 269,419 1,915,534 (523,802) 1.661,151
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 14,035,109 % 3,030,001 § 80,973 § 17.146,083

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of this Statement
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 5

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES &

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of Sales & Services
Personnel & Benefits
Administration
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES  §

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) h

NON-OPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment Income
Interest Expense
CDBG Block Grant
Government Subsidies

TOTAL NON-OPERATING

REVENUES (EXPENSES) b
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE

TRANSFERS )
TRANSFERS

Transfers In
Transfers (Out)

TOTAL TRANSFERS §
NET INCOME (LOSS) $
NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS, End of Year 3

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER WILLIAMSBURG
& SEWER  COUNTY TRANSIT E911
FUND SYSTEM FUND TOTAL
880,024 $ 1.296,115 $ 281,197 § 2.457,336
880,024 $ 1,296,115 § 281,197 $ 2,457,336
374,765 690,698 171,806 1,237,269
103,326 1,195,544 677,933 1,976,803
200,558 295,836 55,078 551,472
379,422 210,733 73,670 663,825
1,058,071 § 2,392,811 §$ 978,487 § 4,429,369
(178,047) 3 (1,096,696) $ (697,290) $ (1,972,033)
14,993 34,366 2,011 51,370
(22,310) 0 (8,585) (30,895)
502,300 0 0 502.300
0 658,513 0 658,513
494983 § 692,879 $ (6,574) $ 1,181,288
316,936 § (403,817) $ (703,864) $ (790,745)
0 206.204 163,475 669.679
0 0 (19,276) (19.276)
0 s 206,204 $ 444,199 $ 650,403
316,936 $ (197.613) $ (259,665) S (140.342)
13,718.173 3,227,614 340,638 17,286,425
14,035,109 § 3,030,001 § 80,973 S 17,146,083

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of this Statement
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITFIES

Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payvments to and for Employee's Benetit

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Operating Grants
Payments Received {rom Other Funds

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital Grants Received

Property. Plant and Equipment Additions
Principal Payment Revenue Bonds
Principal Payment Capital L.eases
Interest Paid

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Certificates of Deposit
Interest Received (Reinvested)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS § (531.227)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Year

Cash
Cash Restricted

TOTAL CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS, End of Year

WATER WILLIAMSBURG
& SEWER  COUNTY TRANSIT E911
FUND SYSTEM FUND FUND TOTAL
3 880241 § 1.306.510 % 277927 % 2.464.678
{634.837) (1.055.731) (228.598) (1.919.166)
(108.671) (1.202 441) (684.209) (1.995.321)
$ 136,733 % {951.662) % (634.880) § (1.449.809)
¢ 806,218 0 806.218
0 206.204 683.706 §89.910
b IR 1,012,422 % 683.706 % 1.696.128
502.300 0 0 502,300
(L.155.889) (274,227) (68.477) (1.498,593)
{6,088) 0 0 (6.088)
0 0 (43,425} (43.425)
(22.401) 0 (8.5835) (30.986)
b (682.078) % (274,227) § (120.487) § {1.076,792)
0 (37.818) 0 137.818)
14118 37,785 2011 53914
3 14118 § (33) § 2011 % 16.096
5 {213.500) $ (69.630}) § (814377}
830,732 799,615 301.277 1.931.624
b 299.505 % 586,115 % 231627 % L1E7.247
269,505 586.115 231,627 1.087.247
30.000 0 G 3000
5 299.505 % 586,115 % 231627 % 1.117.247

The Accompanying Notes,%e an Integral Part of this Statement




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income (Loss) $

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating [ncome to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts and
Other Recetvables
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Items
Increase (Decrease) in Due to General Fund
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Others
Increase (Decrease) in Salaries and
Compensated Absences Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Customer Deposits

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES %

WATER WILLIAMSBURG
& SEWER  COUNTY TRANSIT E%11
FUND SYSTEM FUND FUND TOTAL

(178.047) & (1,096,696) $ (697.290) % (1,972.033)
379.422 210,733 73.670 663.8235
217 10,395 (3.270) 7.342

0 (22,301) 0 (22301

0 224,160 0 224,160

(29.391) (120.831) 0 (150.222)
(29,303) (130,225) {1.714) (181,242)

0 (3.335) 0 (3.335)

(5,345) (3.562) (6,276) (15,183)
(8200 0 0 (820
136,733 § {951,662) & (634,880) $ {1.449.809)

The Accompanying Notesj%re an Integral Part of this Statement




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
REVOLVING
LOAN
AGENCY TRUST
FUNDS FUND TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash 2,100,261 § 80,308 § 2,180,569
Note Receivable 0 718,389 718,389
TOTAL ASSETS 2,100,261 % 798,697 § 2,898,958
LIABILITIES
| Due to Other Taxing Units 1,257,063 0 1,257.063
Due to Estate & Trust Beneficiaries 423,140 0 423,140
Due to Others 72.000 0 72,000
Due to Bidders & Redeemers of Land Sales 202,135 0 202,135
Due to Fine Recipients and Bond Payors 102,119 0 102,119
Due to Support Recipients 17,126 0 17,126
Due to Seized Asset Recipient 26,678 0 26,678
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,100,261 $ 0% 2,100,261
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Other Purposes 08 798,697 § 798,697

P——

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of this Statement
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- WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
1o STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
' FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

= REVOLVING
: i LOAN TRUST
FUND
: ‘ ADDITIONS
Interest income 3 2,606
. i TOTAL ADDITIONS 5 2,606
H
DEDUCTIONS
-
] Economic Development Loans & Disbursements 19,200
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS % 19,200
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ (16,594}
NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year 815,291
NET ASSETS, End of Year $ 798,697

‘The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of this Statement
25




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Williamsburg County, South Carolina have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
of the government's accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The State of South Carolina established the County under the provisions of the South Carolina Home Rule Act. Williamsburg
County operates under the Council - Supervisor form of government and provides the following services: general administrative
services, public safety, courts, highways and streets, sanitation, health and human services, culture and recreation programs, public
improvements and other miscellaneous services. Asrequired by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the County and its component units, entities for which the County is considered financially accountable or for which
exclusion of a component unit would render the financial statements incomplete or misleading. The County’s combined financial
statemnents include the accounts of all County Operations and those organizations that meet the criteria pursuant to Governmental
Accounting Board Statement No. 14, * The Financial Reporting Entity.”

The organization is legally separate.

The County holds the corporate powers of the organization.

The County appoints a voting majority of the organization.

The County is able to impaose its will on the organization.

The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit or burden on the County.
There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the County.

TmO0Ep

Based upen the aforementioned criteria, the County has included Wiiliamsburg County Library as a discretely presented component
unit. The discretely presented component unit is included since it is fiscally dependent upon the County for the annual
appropriations, approval of annual operating budgets, and the authorization of general obligation debt issues. A discretely presented
component unit is reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the County. The discretely presented component unit has a June 30 year-end. Separate financial statements for this component
unit may be obtained from the entity’s management.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
W illiamsburg County Library

215 North Jackson
Kingstree, SC 29556
Telephone (843) 355-9486

The South Carolina Legislature created the Williamsburg County Library System in 1967 as part of Williamsburg County
Government. lts purpose is to provide library services to the citizens of Williamsburg County and bookmobile services to the rural
areas of the County. The library operates under a nine member Board of Trustees that is appointed by the County Council. In
addition to providing significant annual appropriations to finance the operations of the Library, County Council approves its budget

and all general obligation debt.
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The financial statement presentation for the County meets the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Staternent No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments.
The financial statement presentation provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the County’s net assets, revenues,
expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows that replaces the fund-group perspective previously required.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net assets) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for .
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Indirect expense
allocations that have been made in the funds have been eliminated from the statement of activities. Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and availabie. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as weil as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment
is due.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. The general fund is the primary operating fund of the County. The general fund accounts for all financial resources
except those that are required to be reported in another fund.

Rural Fire Fund: The rural fire fund is a special revenue fund which accounts for the rural fire district revenues and expenditures.

Landfill Fund. The landfill fund is a special revenue fund which accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
collected for the purpose of providing landfili services to Williamsburg County. The landfill fund is responsible for collecting
required funds for the closure and postclosure costs of the landfill.

Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund accounts for proceeds that are restricted for the purpose of debt payments.
The County reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water & Sewer (Enterprise Fundj: The water & sewer fund is used to account for the cost of providing water & sewer services to
unincorporated areas of the County.

Williamsburg County Transit System: The Williamsburg County Transit System fund is used to account for the cost of providing
transportation services to the citizens of Williamsburg County.




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E 911 Fund: The E911 fund is used to account for the cost of providing emergency services to the citizens of Williamsburg County.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Agency Fund: This fund is used to report resources held by the County in a custedial capacity as an agent on behalf of others and
does not involve the measurement of results of operation.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund: This fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for revolving loans. There is no
requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do net conflict with or contradict
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided,
2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services for
water and sewer fees, the revenues received for operating the Williamsburg County Transit System, and the revenues received for
operating the E-911 fund. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and

expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Deposits and Investments

The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the United States and its agencies, general obligations (not revenue
obligations) of the State of South Carolina and its subdivisions, savings and loan associations to the extent of federal insurance,
certificates of deposit collaterally secured, and repurchase agreements secured by the foregoing obligations.

The County’s cash investment objectives are preservation of capital, liquidity and yield. In accordance with GASB Statement No.
31, "Accounting and Financial Repoerting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools,” all investments are reported
at their fair values. The County has no investments at this time reported at amortized cost.

The County has certain funds invested with the South Carolina State Treasurer’s Office, which established the South Carolina Local
Government Investment Pool Fund (the “*Pool”) pursuant to Section 6-6-10 of the South Carolina Code. The Pool is an investment
trust fund, in which public monies in excess of current needs, which are under the custody of any city treasurer or any govemning
body of a political subdivision of the State, may be deposited. The Pool is a 2a 7-like pool which is not registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (*SEC”) as an investment company, but has a policy that it will operate in a manner consistent with the
SEC’s Rule 2a 7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools”, investments are carried at fair value determined annually
based upon quoted market prices. The total fair value of the Pool is apportioned to the entities with funds invested on an equal basis
for each share owned, which are acquired at a cost of $1.00.
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. Interfund Receivables and Pavables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are
referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e.,
the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”,
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable
governmental funds to indicate they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

F. Receivables

Allaccounts and property tax receivables are shown at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion
that is expected to be uncollectible. This amount is determined by analyzing the percentage of receivables that was not collected
in prior years.

Property taxes for real property and personal property except motor vehicles are due without penalties by January 15™ of each fiscal
year. Uncollected taxes and penaities are considered delinquent on March 15". Property taxes for motor vehicles are due in the

month in which the state motor vehicle license will be renewable. Property tax revenues are recognized in accordance with imposed
nonexchange transactions in accordance with GASB No. 33.

G. Inventories

The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. The
amount of inventories on hand at year end for the governmental fund types consist of gasoline and diesel fuel. Inventories are valued
at cost using the average cost method.

H. Restricted Assets

Certain assets of landfill revenue, debt service, and enterprise funds are classified as restricted on the balance sheet because their
use is limited to specific purposes for which the funds were received.

I. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements, Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges. underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic signals, etc. Neither their
historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been reported in the financial staterents. The retroactive reporting of
infrastructure was subject to an extended implementation period.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not
capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Construction in progress represents funds expended for construction of capital assets which have not been placed into service yet.
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Property, plant, and equipment of the County are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Asset Years
Land Ilmprovements 15-20
Buildings 30-40
Building Improvements 15-40
Leasehold Improvements 15-20
Furniture & Fixtures 3-15
Machinery & Equipment 5-15
Vehicles 3-10
Communication Equipment 15
Infrastructure 20

Depreciation for capital assets that can be specifically identified with a function is included in the direct expenses for that function.

J. Compensated Absences

It is the County’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability
for unpaid accurnulated sick leave since the government does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from
service. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements.
A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee

resignations and retirements.

K. Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet the criteria for recognition in the current period. In subsequent
periods, when revenue recognition criteria are met, the government has a legal claim to the resources, or the revenue has been

earned, the liability is removed and revenue is recognized.

L. Long-Term Qbligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium, discount, and deferred refunding costs. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and

amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
jssuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M. Nonexchange Transactions

The standards established by GASB Statement No. 33, “dccounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions”,
provide accounting and reporting for the following four categories of nonexchange transactions: 1) Derived tax revenues, 2

Imposed nonexchange revenues, 3) Government-mandated nonexchange transactions, and 4) Voluntary nonexchange transactions,
Nonexchange transactions involve financial or capital resources in which the government either gives value to another party without
directly receiving equal value in exchange or receives value from another party without directly giving equal value in exchange.

Assets from Derived Tax Revenues are recognized when the underlying exchange has occurred or when the resources are received,
whichever first. Revenues are recognized when the underlying exchange has occurred and resources are available to the

government.,

Assets from Imposed Nonexchange Revenues are recognized when an enforceable legal claim has arisen or when resources are
received, whichever occurs first. Revenues are recognized when resources are required to be used or the first period that use is

permitted. Resources must also be available to the government.

Assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures from Government-Mandated and Voluntary Nonexchange Transactions are generally
recognized when all eligibility requirements have been met.

Resources received before the eligibility requirements are fulfilled are reported as deferred revenues. Eligibility requirements can
include one or more of the following:

1. The recipient has the characteristics specified by the provider.
2. Time requirements specified by the provider have been met,

The provider offers resources on a reimbursement basis and allowable costs have been incurred under the applicable program.

L

4. The provider’s offer of resources is contingent upon a specified action of the recipient and that action has occurred.

N. _Net Assets/Fund Balances

The County’s net assets in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as
follows:

Invested in Capitai Assets, Net of Related Debt: This represents the County’s total investment in capital assets, net of outstanding
debt obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such
amounts are not included as a component of invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Restricted Net Assets: Restricted expendable net assets include resources in which the County is legally or contractually obligated
to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by third parties.

Unrestricted Net Assets: Unresiricted net assets represent resources derived from ad valorem taxes, earnings on investments,
state/local grants, fees, and shared revenues.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2008
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

At year end, the County had the following investments:

Investment Type Fair Value
Local Government Investment Pool $ 3.716.610
Total Investiments $ 3.716.610

Interest rate risk is the risk that a change in interest rate will cause the fair value of a government’s financial instruments to drop
or will negatively affect the government’s cash flows. The County’s investment policy does not address interest rate risk.

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations. The County’s investrent policy does not address credit
risk but limits its investments to obligations of the United States and its agencies, general obligations of South Carolina and its
political subdivisions, savings and loan associations if their deposits are insured by an agency of the federal government, certificates
of deposits insured by obligations of the United States or general obligation bonds of the State of South Carolina or its political
subdivisions, and repurchase agreements when collateralized by United States obligations.

Concentration of credit risk - the County’s investment policy does not address concentration of credit risk.

Custodial credit risk - deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may
not be returned to the County. The County’s investment policy requires deposits to be insured by the federal government or its
agencies or collaterally secured by the federal government or its agencies. As of June 30, 2008, the County’s bank balance was
$10,623,658 and the carrying value was $8,961,871. Of the bank balance $10,623,658, the amount that was exposed to custodial
credit risk totaled $9,645,948. Deposits totaling $5,572,662 were uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution or its agent but not in the County’s name. The bank balance of $3,707,566 was uninsured and collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution or its agent in the County’s name. Bank deposits totaling $365,720 were
uninsured and uncollateralized.

Custodial credit risk - Investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The investment balance of $3,716,610 as of June 30, 2008, was not exposed to custodial credit risk as it is an asset backed
security. '

The deposit and investment policy of the County adheres to State statutes and prudent business practice. Deposits of the

governmental funds are either maintained in demand deposits or savings accounts, certificates of deposits, or repurchase agreements.
The uncollateralized bank balance of $365,720 was in violation of the State statute and the policy of the County,

Reconciliation of Cash and Investments to Fund Financial Statements

Cash and Investments

Cash and Investments $ 7,068,022

Restricted Cash and Investments 5,614,587
Total Cash and Investments S 12,682,609
Petty Cash $ 4,128
Deposits Carrying Value 8,961,871
Investments 3,716,610
Total Cash and Investments $ 12,682,609
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Component Unit Cash and Investments

The carrying value of deposits for Williamsburg County Library totaled $132,571, of which $17,092 were uninsured and
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or its agent but not in the County’s name. The rest is insured
by the Federal Depositors Insurance Corporation.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2008 consist of the following:

Governmental-Type Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Taxes Receivable, Net 3 1,131,462 § 0% 1,131,462
Accounts Receivable, Net 0 28,485 28,485
Due From Others 2,884 0 2,884
Due From State Government 314,759 0 314,759
Court Fines Receivable, Net 55,126 0 55,126
Interest Receivable 0 8,020 8,020
Other Receivables 1,353,755 136,161 1,489,916
Total Receivables | $ 2,857,986 § 172,666 § 3,030,652

Taxes receivable in the governmental activities are reported net of allowance for uncollectible tax of $488,201. Court fines
receivable are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible fines of $158,747 in the governmental activities. Ambulance fees are
reported net of an allowance for uncollectible fees of $880,581. Accounts receivable in the business-type activities have been
reported net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $8,574. Accounts receivable in the governmental funds have been reported
net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $37,956.

Property taxes receivable that do not meet the availability requirement have been recorded as deferred revenue.

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS

The County has recorded cash and investments as restricted in the amount of $5,584,587 in the governmental funds for special fees
collected to fund the closure and post-closure cost of the landfill in the amount of $4,043,617 and $1,301,456 received by the debt
service fund to meet debt service reserve requirements. The County has recorded cash and investments of $239,514 as restricted
for lease purchases. The restricted cash in the business-type activities is the required restriction for debt service for outstanding
Rural Deveiopment Bonds.
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital Assets, not being Depreciated
Land $ 1,679,570 $ 40,000 $ 0% 1,719,570
Total, not being Depreciated by 1.679.570 $ 40.000 $ 0% 1,719,570
Capital Assets, being Depreciated;
Land Improvements $ 4,162,917 $ 155,320 $ 0% 4,318,237
Road and Bridges 3,436,586 1,001,982 0 4,438,568
Buildings 6,054,653 200,961 0 6,255,614
Building Improvements 4,617.216 102,295 1] 4,719,511
Leasehold Improvements 417,342 0 0 417,342
Furniture & Fixtures 1,614,732 37.627 {5,003) £,647,356
Machinery & Equipment 2,924,001 38,716 0 2,962,717
Automotive Equipment 7,713,212 350,610 (1,017,918 7,045,904
Communication Equipment 72,718 27,782 0 100,500
Total, being Depreciated § 31013377 % 1,915,293 § (1,022,921 % 31,905,749
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements £ (1,705,137 % (212,180) § 0% (1,921,317
Road and Bridges (998,173) (295,469) 0 {1,293,642)
Buildings (2,125,534) (173,243) 0 (2,298,779)
Building improvements (2,196,183) (150,717) 0 (2,346,902)
Leasehold Improvements (190,265) (22,959) 0 (213,224)
Furniture & Fixtures (680,550) (66,402) 5,003 {741,949)
Machinery & Equipment (1,793,390) (428,657) 0 (2,222,047)
Automotive Equipment (5,404,432) {846,047) 979,900 (5,270,579)
Communication Equipment (33,514) (7.642) 0 (43,136)
Total Accumulated Depreciation $__(15,133,180)8 _ (2.203.318) 984.903 $  (16,551,595)
Total, being Depreciated, Net 5 15,880,197 $ (288.025) § (38,0i8) % 15,554,154
Total Governmental Activities, Net $___17,559.767 § (248,023) § (38.018)% 17,273,724

Capital Asset additions in the governmental funds totaled $1,955,293, and the current year depreciation expense totaled
$2,203,318. Assets totaling $1,022,921 were disposed of resulting in a loss on disposal of capital assets of $38,018.
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
v NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

10 © NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

| Beginning Ending
| Business-Type Activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
l Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
o Land $ 148,000 $ 0% 0$ 148,000
| Construction in Progress 0 1.134,961 0 1,154,961
J Total, not being Depreciated 5 148,000 $ 1.154.961 § 03 1,302,961
Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
i Land Improvements $ 13,444 § 03 085 13,444
L Buildings 193,726 0 0 193,726
. Buiiding Improvements 87.470 0 0 87,470
; Water Distribution System 14,837,973 928 0 14,838,901
! Furniture & Fixtures 315,917 0 0 315,917
. Machinery & Equipment 487,299 50,067 0 537,366
; | Automotive Equipment 2,798,617 224,160 0 3,022,777
Communication Equipment 640,446 68,477 0 708,923
g Total, being Depreciated $ 19374892 § 343,632 § 0% 19,718,524
! Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements $ (13,418) § (26) & 03 (13,444)
Buildings (149,907) (5,722) 0 (155,629)
Building Improvements (30,903} {4,646) 0 (35,549)
Water Distribution System (1,504,313) (379,422} 0 (1,883,735)
Furniture & Fixtures (156,777) (19,643) 0 (176,422)
Machinery & Equipment (436,016) (19,863) ¢ (455,879)
Automotive Equipment (1,855,824) (187,238) 0 (2,043,062)
Communication Equipment (112,781) {47.263) 0 (160,044)
Total Accumulated Depreciation $  (4,239.939) § (663.823) % 0% (4,923,764)
; Total, being Depreciated, Net $ 15114953 § (320,193) § 03 14,794,760
Total Business-Type Activities, Net $ 152629353 §% 834,768 % 0% 16,097,721

The capital asset additions of business-type activities totaled 51,498,593 and depreciation expense in business-type activities
totaled $663,825.

Construction in Progress totaling $1,154,961 represents funds expended to date on the South Carolina 377 Connector Project
which is expected to be completed in December 2008 and has remaining contractual commitments at June 30, 2008 in the amount

} of $518,000.




.......

WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions;

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 106,294
Public Safety 720,944
Public Works 693,427
Health and Human Services 168,990
Economic Development 170,220
Environmental Services - Landfill 227,709
Cultural and Recreation 115,734
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 2203518

Business-Type Activities:

Water & Sewer Fund $ 379,422
Williamsburg County Transit System 210,733
E 911 Fund 73,670
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities $ 663,825

Component Units:

Beginning Ending
Capital assets being depreciated Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Vehicles b 131,600 § 08 03 131,600
Computer Equipment 181,251 6.500 0 187,751
Furniture & Fixtures 189,436 0 0 189,436
Total capital assets being depreciated 3 502,287 § 6,500 § 0 § 508,787
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (344,871) {30,869) ] (375,740)
Net capital assets being depreciated 3 157,416 §  (24,369) $ 03 133.047
Depreciation Expense was charged
to the component unit as follows:
Cultural & Recreation 3 30,869

Total assets purchased under capital leases are as follows:

Governmentai Business-Type
Activities Activities
Asset Cost 3 3,94997F § 537,734
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,284,464) (107,547)
Totals $ 1,665,507 § 430,187
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NOTE 6 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between
funds are made. At June 30, 2008, interfund teceivables and payables resulting from various interfund transactions were as
follows. All balances are expected to be repaid within the following year.

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 1,589,768 § 0
Rural Fire Fund 0 39,234
Landfill Fund 0 533,265
Other Governmental Funds 0 203,584
Debt Service Fund 30,202 0
Williamsburg County Transit System Fund 0 105,968
E911 Fund 0 737,919
Totals $ 1,619,970 $ 1,619,970

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES
The County's governmental activities have five (3) lease purchase agreements and its business-type activities have one (1) lease
purchase agreement. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded

at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date,

Future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2009 $ 898,629 3 52,010 § 950,639
2010 731,786 52,010 783,796
2011 491,343 52,010 543,353
2012 0 4.334 4,334
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 2,121,758 % 160,364 § 2,282,122
Less: Amount Representing Interest (120,074) (12,012} (132,086)
Totals 5 2.001,684 3% 148,352 § 2,150,036




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

‘ NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2008;

r J Beginning Ending Due Within
J Governmental Activities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

] Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds $ 4503616 § 08 (363457) 8 4,140,159 § 373,438
. Plus Unamortized Premium 22,159 0 (1,705) 20,454 0
l Bond Anticipation Notes 1,796,000 0 (204.288) 1.585,712 257451
E Total Bonds Payable 3 6315775 % 03 (369450)% 5,746,325 % 630,939
o Landfill Closure Cost 3,606,309 107,438 0 3,713,767 107,458
| { } Capital Leases 2,496,905 430.000 (925,221) 2,001,684 831,468
Compensated Absences 415,442 467,240 (415,442) 467,240 116,810
Totals $_ 12834431 $ 1,004,698 $ (1,910,113) $ 11,929,016 $ 1,686,675
Beginning Ending Due Within
Business-Type Activities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Revenue Bonds $ 500,525 $ 08 (6.088) § 494437 § 5,767
Capital Leases 191,777 0 (43,425 - 148,352 45,641
- Compensated Absences 65,442 63,233 {65,442) 63,233 14,578
[ 1]
| Totals b 757,744 % 63,233 5 (114,955 § 706,022 § 65,986
j ‘ On September 1, 2004, Williamsburg County issued General Obligation Bonds of $3,275,000 which include a current refunding
’ of the Rural Fire Bonds of 1990, General Obligation Bonds of 1990, General Obligation Bonds of 1994, and General Obligation
- Bonds of 1996. The bonds were refunded at book value. The bonds are not considered as part of the County’s legal debt limit
{ as the Rural Fire Bonds are part of the Rural Fire District.
|

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for obligations outstanding at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

General Obligation Bonds of 2004 (Issued 9/1/04)
Maturity Date September 1, 2020

[ Fiscal Total
E__ _ Year Interest Interest Interest Annual
Ending Rate Balance Principal Sept. | March | Payments
B 2009 3.00% § 2535000 % 125,000 % 48,291 § 48,291 % 221,582
2010 3.00% 2,410,000 130,000 46,260 46,260 222,520
N 2011 3.00% 2,280,000 140,000 44,147 44,148 228,295
- 2012 3.25% 2,140,600 150,000 41,698 41,697 233,395
| 2013 3.25% 1,990,000 160,000 39,074 39,074 238,148
| ™) 2014-2018 3.50%-4.00% 1.830,000 1,275,000 134,242 134,243 1,543,485
, } 2019-2020 4.00%-4.10% 553,000 553,000 17,084 17,084 589,168
- Totals ¥ 2535000 % 370,796 $ 370,797 § 3,276,593
1} ' 38




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
; NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘: FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
General Obligation Bonds of 1998 {Issued 06/01/98)
| Maturity Date June 1, 2013
: ‘ Fiscal Total
Year Interest Interest Annual
| J Ending Rate Balance Principal December ] Payments
2009 5.50% 5 330,159 § 63,488 § 20,029 3 83,517
2010 5.50% 266,671 66,665 14,800 81,463
2011 5.50% 200,006 66,665 11,100 77,765
2012 5.50% 133,341 66,665 7.400 74,065
o 2013 5.50% 66,676 66,676 3,703 70,379
| Totals S 330,159 $ 57,032 $ 387191
! General Obligation Bonds of 1999 (Issued 07/18/99)
' Maturity Date July 18, 2014
| Fiscal Total
Year Interest Interest Interest Annual
} Ending Rate Balance Principal December | June 1 Payments
2009 4400% § 1,275,000 $ 185,000 § 28,335 § 28335 8§ 241,670
2010 4.400% 1,090,000 200,000 24,525 24,525 249,050
; 2011 4.400% 890,000 205,000 20,025 20,025 245,050
g 2012 4.400% 685,000 215,000 15,413 15,412 245,825
5 2013 4.400% 470,000 230,000 10,575 10,575 251,150
2014 4.400% 240,000 240.000 5,400 5,400 250,800
]l Totals $ 1275000 § 104,273 3 104,272 § 1,483,545
" Bond Anticipation Loans (lssued 6/8/06)
A
Fiscal Total
u Year Interest Interest Annual
; Ending Rate Balance Principal March 29 Payments
2009 4.05% § 1.585712 $ 257451 § 63,733 § 321,184
2010 4.05% 1,328,261 244,988 53,795 298,783
2011 4.05% 1,083,273 254,910 43,873 298,783
) 2012 4.05% 828.363 265,234 33,349 298,783
2013 4.05% 563,129 275,976 22,807 298,783
2014 4.05% 287,153 287,133 11,630 298,783
B Totals $ 1585712 8% 229,387 $ 1,815,099
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- NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The legal debt limit for the County is eight per centum of the assessed valuation of the taxable property in the County. Based on
] the 2008 assessed valuation of $85,484.872 the legal debt limit is approximately $6,838,790. At June 30, 2008, the County has
N general obligation bonds outstanding of $2,860,000 subject to the legal debt limit.

o Revenue Bonds of 2002 (Issued 05/17/02)
Maturity February 17, 2045

" Fiscal Total
: | Year Interest Annual
' Ending Rate Balance Principal Interest Payments
2009 4.50% h 459,377 § 5332 % 21,128 § 26,460
2010 4.50% 454,045 5,577 20,883 26,460
2011 4.50% 448,468 5,833 20,627 26,460
0 2012 4.50% 442,635 6,101 20,359 26,460
E 2013 4.50% 436,534 6,381 20,079 26,460
2014-2018 4.50% 430,153 36,583 95,717 132,300
i 2019-2023 4.50% 393,570 45,794 86,506 132,300
2024-2028 4.50% 347,776 57,325 74,975 132,300
2029-2033 4.50% 290,451 71,759 60,541 132,300
2034-2038 4.50% 218,692 89,828 42,472 132,300
2039-2043 4.50% 128.864 112,446 19,854 132,300
) 2044-2045 4.50% 16,418 16.418 13,352 29.770 -
i Totals $__ 459377 S 496493 § 955,870
Revenue Bonds of 2002 (Issued 05/17/02)
g Maturity February 17, 2042
Fiscal Total
E Year Interest Annual
i Ending Rate Balance Principal Interest Payments
2009 4.50% $ 35,060 § 435 § 1,593 § 2,028
2010 4.50% 34,625 455 1,573 2,028
i 2011 4.50% 34,170 476 1,552 2,028
..... _ 2012 4.50% 33,694 498 1,530 2,028
2013 4.50% 33,196 521 1,507 2,028
2014-2018 4.50% 32,675 2,984 7,136 10,140
- 2019-2023 4.50% 29,691 3,735 6,405 10,140
f 2024-2028 4.50% 25,956 4,675 3,465 10,140
2029-2033 4.50% 21,281 5,853 4,287 16,140
- 2034-2038 4.50% 15,428 7.327 2,813 10,140
i 5 2039-2042 4.50% 3.101 8,101 1.509 9.610
' Totals $ 35,060 S 35,390 § 70,450

] 40




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 8§ - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED}

The annual requirements to amortize bond anticipation notes, general obligation and revenue bonds, and capital leases. as of June
30, 2008 are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2009 £ 1462405 $ 304,177 $ 1,766,582 § 51,408 § 29090 § 80,498
2010 1,335,257 248,347 1,583,604 34,204 26,294 80,498
2011 1,143,189 198,047 1,341,236 56,531 23,967 80,498
2012 696,899 155,189 852,088 10,916 21,906 32,822
20613 732,652 125,808 858,460 6,902 21,586 28,488
2014-2018 1,802,153 290,915 2,093,068 39.567 102,873 142,440
2019-2023 555,000 34,148 589,148 49,529 92,911 142,440
2024-2028 0 0 0 62,000 80,440 142,440
2029-2033 0 0 0 77,612 64,328 142,440
2034-2038 0 0 0 97,155 45,285 142,440
2039-2043 0 0 0 120,547 21,363 141,910
2044-2045 0 0 0 16,418 13,352 29,770
Totals § 7.727.555 § 1,356,631 §__ 9.084.186 § 642.789 $ 543.895 $_ 1.186.684

NOTE 9 - OPERATING LEASES

The County was engaged in a 2-year noncancelable operating lease of an office building used for social services, which expired
in November 2007 at a monthly lease payment of $13,500. Rental expense associated with the lease for the year ended June 30,
2008 is $162,000 and is reflected by the County as current-general government expenditures. The County is currently continuing
to rent the office building used for social services in the amount of $13,500 per menth on a month-by-month basis.

NOTE 10 - CONTINGENCIES

Grants: Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies in previous years are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, could become a liability to the general fund or other

applicable funds.

Litigation: As of June 30, 2008, actions have been alleged against the County in which it has denied liability. Any liability would
be covered by the Insurance Reserve Fund up to the policy limit. The outcome or the amount of recovery, if any, cannot be
predicted with certainty. Accordingly, no liability has been recorded.

Unemployment Compensation: The County makes payments to the South Carolina Employment Security Conunission on a
reimbursement basis for costs incurred in the administration of the state unemployment compensation statutes. Claims incurred

but not reported at June 30, 2008 are not determinable.
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NOTE 10 - CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Other Commitments: County Council approved a loan of $150,000 from the revolving loan fund to the Williamsburg County
Development Corporation to purchase a building, which will be a no interest, no recourse lease purchase transaction consisting
of 100 payments at $1.500 per month. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2008 is $19,200. County Council approved a loan of
$520,650 from the revolving fund to Williamsburg County Development Corporation, which is a no interest, no recourse lease
purchase transaction with a maturity date of October 15, 2009. County Council approved a loan of $178,539 to the Performance
Fabrics and Fibers, LLC with monthly payments of $3,794 and a maturity date of December 15, 2010, This is a no interest and

no recourse loan.

NOTE 11 - INTERFUND TRANSFER RECONCILIATION

Transfers are used to move certain revenues to finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations. Transfers between the County’s various funds are generally made to fund Council
approved projects. A schedule of transfers is as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund $ 1,334,264 § 1,534,138
Rural Fire Fund 0 90,000
Debt Service Fund 325,081 1,334,264
Other Governmental Funds 883,735 235,081
Williamsburg County Transit Enterprise Fund 206,204 0
E-911 Enterprise Fund 463,475 19,276
Totals 3 3,212,759 § 3,212,159

NOTE 12 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Williamsburg County offers its employees two deferred compensation plans complying with IRC 457 and IRC 401 (k). These plans
are available to all County empioyees through the South Carolina State Treasurer's Office. The plans offer a variety of investment
choices to the participant. The deferred compensation cannot be withdrawn by the participant until separation of employment,
retirement, death, disability or an approved hardship.

In 1996, Congress passed new legislation to govern IRC Section 457 plans. Specifically, the new legislation concludes that a plan
shall not be treated as an eligible deferred compensation plan unless all assets and income of the plan are held in trust for the
exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. During the year ended June 30, 1999, the South Carolina Deferred
Compensation Commission modified their plan to comply with the new legislative requirements.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 32 was issued to address the financial reporting ramifications of'the
new federal legislation and states that a fiduciary relationship must exist for a governmental entity to report the balances and
transactions related to the plan in its financial statements. According to the provisions of the statement, it was determined that
a fiduciary relationship did not exist for the County’s IRC Section 457 plan, and likewise, its balance has not been recorded in
the County’s financial statements.

NOTE 13 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Williamsburg County contributes to the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and to the Police Officers Retirement System
(PORS). Title 9-1-480 Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976 (as amended), states that all eligible persons, except those
specifically excluded, shall become members of SCRS or PORS as a condition of their employment. The responsibility for
administration of the system is assigned by law to the State Budget & Control Board.
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NOTE 13 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

SCRS and PORS are both maintained as a cost-sharing multiple-employer Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).

Generally ali full-time employees who are responsible for the preservation of the public order are members of the PORS; the
remaining County employees are members of the SCRS.

South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS): Covered general County empioyees participate in the SCRS, a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer, defined benefit pension plan. The SCRS provides retirement and disability benefits, with cost of living adjustments
on an ad hoc basis, life insurance benefits, and survivor benefits. Member employees currently contribute 6.50% of their annual
compensation. The employer contribution is 9.21% of the total membership's annual compensation; included is the entire cost
of group life insurance for covered employees at the rate of .15%.

Employees attaining the age of 65 or having 28 years of credited service are entitled to [.82% of average final compensation.
Other available benefits include group life insurance coverage afier one year's membership, (immediate coverage if death is job
related), disability coverage after five years” membership (immediate coverage if job related), vesting rights after five years’
membership (with survivor allowance after 15 years creditable service or age 65). Benefit provisions are established under the
authority of Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws.

The benefits at retirement are determined by the following formula: 1.82% of an employee’s average final compensation multiplied
by the number of years of credited service.

Police Officers Retirement System (PORS): Covered County employees {i.e. whose principal duties are the preservation of public
order) are required to participate in the PORS, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan. The PORS
provides both retirement and death benefits on an employee and employer contribution basis. Member employees currently
contribute 6.5% of their annual compensation. The employer contribution is 10.7% of the total membership's annual
compensation; included is the entire cost of group life insurance for covered employees at the rate of .20% and the entire cost of
accidental death for covered employees at the rate of .20%. As a member of the PORS an employee can elect to retire after
reaching age 35 with at least five years of credited service, or 25 years of service credit regardless of age. Another option
available is when an employee has completed five years of credited service prior to age 55, they can retire yet defer their
retirement allowance until they reach age 55. Other benefits include disability coverage after five years membership (immediate
coverage if job related), group life insurance coverage after one year of credited service (immediate coverage if job related),
accidental death program allowing a monthly pension equal to 50% of the member's budgeted compensation at the time of death,
and vesting rights after five years membership. Benefit provisions are established under the authority of Title 9 of the SC Code

of Laws.

The benefits at retirement are determined by the following formula: 2.14% of an employee’s average final compensation multiplied
by the number of vears of credited service.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2008:

Primary Government

Payroll Contributions

Covered Employee Employer Total
SCRS h3 6,453,672 3§ 405,726 % 594,383 3 1,000,109
PORS 2,402,400 136,136 257,057 413,213
Totals & 3,856,072 § 561,882 §$ 851,440 $ 1,413,322
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NOTE 13 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

_ Component
0 Unit Payroll Contributions
Covered Employee Employer Total
| SCRS 3 169,898 3 11,643 § 15393 $ 26,436
’ Totals N3 160,898 § 1,043 § 15,393 § 26,436

Funding Policy: Both employers and employees are required to contribute to the plans under authority of Title 9 of the South
Carolina Code of Laws. Employee required contributions to the plans are as follows:

1 SCRS 6.50% of Salary
i PORS Class Il 6.50% of Salary

ol Employers are required to contribute at the following actuarially determined rates:

SCRS Local Government 9.06%
; PORS Class I 10.3%

In addition to the above rates participating employers of the South Carolina Retirement System contribute .15% of payroll to
provide a group life insurance benefit for their participants.

Participating employers under the Police Officer Retirement System also contribute .2% of payroil to provide a group life
insurance benefit and .2% of payroll to provide an accidental death benefit for their participants. All employers contribute at the
actuarially required contribution rates.

Three Year Trend Information:

Primary
Government SCRS Annual PORS Annual Percentage
7 Fiscai Employer Employer Contributed
| 2 Year Ended Contribution Contribution For Current Year
X 06/30/08 $594.383 $257,057 100%
06/30/07 $447.244 $228,475 100%
06/30/06 $421,521 $222,159 100%

Component
Unit SCRS Annual Percentage
Fiscal Employer Contributed
" Year Ended Coniribution For Current Year
06/30/08 $15,393 100%
06/30/07 $13,757 100%

06/30/06 512,436 100%

All contributions were equal to the required contributions for each year.
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NOTE 15 - DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue in the general fund represents current year taxes which do not meet the availability criteria for recognition of
$458,617 and deferred court fines of $34,13 1, deferred grant funds of $37,843 and deferred ambulance fees of $82,498.

j Deferred revenue in the landfill special revenue funds represents current year taxes which do not meet the availability criteria for
revenue recognition of $118,668.

Deferred revenue in the debt service fund of $119,391 represents taxes receivable which do not meet the availability criteria for
revenue recognition.

Deferred revenue in the rural fire fund represents current year taxes which do not meet the availability criteria for revenue
recognition of $55,842,

NOTE 16 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The following Enterprise Funds have been created to provide various services to the general public:

Water & Sewer Fund - established to account for the operation of the County's water & sewer services.

Williamsburg County Transit Authority - established to account for transportation services provided to the general public.

E 911 Fund - established to account for the operation of the County's E-911 operations.

Segment information for these Enterprise Funds is summarized below for the year ended June 30, 2008:
Williamsburg
Water & County E-911
Sewer Fund Transit System Fund
; Operating Revenues $ 880,024 §$ 1,296,115 § 281,197
5 Depreciation 379,422 210,733 73,670
| Operating Income (Loss) (178,047) {1,096,696) (697.290)
interfund Transfers 0 206,204 444,199
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 404,983 692,879 (6,574)
Net Income (Loss) (316,936) (197.613) (259,665)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Net Additions 776,467 63.494 (3,193)
Net Working Capital 294,758 £,937,570 (343,930)
Total Assets 14,545,794 3,247,054 1,001,385
Bonds and Other Long-Term Liabilities Payable
from Revenues 494,437 0 148,352
Total Net Assets 14,035,109 3,030,001 80,973

NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County and its component unit are exposed to various risks of loss and pay insurance premiums to certain State agencies and
1 commercial insurers to cover risks that may occur in normal operations. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to

preclude any significant losses for the covered risk. The County has not had a significant reduction in insurance in the last three
- years and has not had claims in excess of coverage in the last three years.
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NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Several State funds accumulate assets and the State itself assumes substantially all risks for the folowing:

1. Claims of State employees for unemployment compensation benefits (Employment Security Commission).
2, Claims of covered employees for workers compensation benefits for job-related illnesses or injuries (State Accident
Fund).

Claims of covered public employees for long-term disability and group-life insurance benefits (Retirement Systems).

(V¥

NOTE I8 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Williamsburg County Development Corporation is a non-profit organization and was established as a certified development
company in accordance with Title V of the Small Business Investment Act of 1958, as amended. The County’s accountability
for this organization does not extend beyond the initial appointments to the Corporation’s board. The County Supervisor and
Chairman of County Council are members of this board.

Williamsburg County and the Town of Kingstree entered into an intergovernmental agreement in July 1999 to build a new library
building. The building is used by the Library Commission, owned by the Town, and is leased indefinitely to the County for §1

annually.

NOTE 19 - FUND BALANCE RESERVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS

The following is a list of all reserves by the County and a brief description of each:
Reserve for Debt Service - an account used to restrict the fund balance of funds collected for the repayment of debts.

Reserve for Closure Costs - an account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate funds collected to fund the closure
and postclosure costs of the landfill does not represent available, spendable resources even though it is a component of current

assets.

Reserve for Special Projects - an account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate funds collected in these funds
are restricted for specific purposes.

Reserve for Inventory - an account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate that these funds do not represent
available, spendable resources even though it is a component of current assets.

Reserved for Capital Projects - an account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate that these funds are restricted
for specific purposes.

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 13, 2008 Williamsburg County obtained a Tax Anticipation note in the amount of $1,500,000 at an interest rate of
2.34% which matures on April 13, 2009,

NOTE 21 - FUND BALANCE DEFICIT

The Roads and Bridges Fund reported a fund balance deficit of $9,996. This deficit will be funded by future revenues.
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NOTE 22 - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 45 “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
than Pensions”, which provides guidance on reporting other postemployment benefits in the financial statements of employers.
The requirements of this statement are effective for the County for the fiscal year beginning July I, 2008. The County has received
a preliminary estimate of its liability under requirements of this statement. The County’s actuarial accrued liability estimate is
$4,814.902, with an annual required contribution of $624,625. The County is currently taking steps to mitigate its OPEB liability
and anticipates drastic reductions in both the accrued liability and annual required contribution estimates.

NOTE 23 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A,

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide statement of
net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental funds and net
assets -~ governmental activities as reported in the government wide statement of net assets, One element of that
reconciliation explains that “capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.” The details of this $17,273,724 are as follows:

Capital Assets $ 33,625,319
Accumulated Depreciation (16,351,595)

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental funds to
arrive at net assets - governmental activities £ 17,273,724

Another element of'that reconciliation is that “other long-term assets, such as property taxes, court fines, and ambulance
fees are notavailable to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the fund financial statements.”
The details of this $869,147 are as follows:

Property Taxes deferred in Governmental Fund Statement 3 752,518
Ambulance fees deferred in Governmental Fund Statement 82,498
Court Fines deferred in Governmental Fund Statement 34,151

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental funds to
arrive at net assets - governmental activities 3 869.147
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
: NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
; ' FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 23 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

5 Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
' ‘ payable in the current period and, therefore, are not repotted in the funds.” The details of this (511,901,141} are as

L follows:
] Bonds Payable $ (5,725.871)
' Less: Deferred charge for issuance cost (to be amortized over
v life of debt) 133,765
| Plus: Issnance premium (to be amortized as interest expense) (20,454)
r Accrued Interest Payable (105,890)
} . Capital Leases Payabie (2,001,684)
- Municipal Solid Waste Landfilf Closure
: I postclosure cost accrual (3,713,767)
Compensated Absences (467,240)
1
’ Net adjustment to decrease fund balance - total governmental funds to
= arrive at net assets - governmental activities hN (11,901,141)
B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in

f fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation
between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental
funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this ($248,025) are as follows:

Capital Outlay $ 1,955,293
Depreciation Expense (2,203,318)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of
governmental activities $ (248,023)

"""" Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Revenues in the statement of activities, such as property taxes and
police fines that will not be collected for several months after year-end and do not provide for current financial resources,
are not reported as revenues in the funds.” The details of that element are as follows:

Police Fines ‘ $ 11,105
Ambulance Fees 9,443
Property Taxes (133,175)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances -
= total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of
governmental activities 3 (112,627)
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 23 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{CONTINUED)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this $1,082,866 are as
follows:

Debt issued or incurred:

Lease Purchase Obligation Proceeds $ (430,000)

Debt issuance Costs (Ban Renewal) 16,900
Principal repayments:

General obligation debt 567,745

Capital lease 925,221

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental
activities 3 1,082,866

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details
of this ($205,143) are as follows:

Compensated absences $ (51,798)
- Accrued Interest 16,225
i Municipal Solid Waste Closure Postclosure Cost Accrual (107,458)
Amortization of issuance costs {25,799)
; Amortization of bond premium 1,705
Loss on disposal of capital assets (38,018)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governimental
activities £ (203.143)
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




T

REVENUES

Taxes

Fees, Licenses, & Permits
Fines & Forfeitures
Charges for Services
Intergovernmental Revenue
Other Revenues

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES

County Council
Supervisor's Office
Council Discretionary
County Attorney
Treasurer

Building & Grounds
Commumity Buildings
Health Department
Auditor

Tax Assessor

Tax Collector

Probate Judge

Clerk of Court
Magistrate

Hemingway Magistrate
Victim Advocates

Other Magistrates
Coroner

Disaster Preparedness
Veterans Affairs Office
Department of Social Services
Aeronautics Commission
Development Board
Voter Registration
General Election Expenses
Solid Waste Disposal
Grant Administration
Tax Forms & Printing
Employee Benefits
Other Expenses

Summer Intern Program
Circuit Court Judge
Building Code Enforcement
Public Defender

Victim Advocates

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED AMOUNTS POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 11,154,037 § 10.861,713 8 10,861,713 % 0
111,600 99,624 99,624 0
571,000 517.018 517,018 0
793,120 811.885 311,885 0
2,589,691 2,741,511 2,741,511 0
476,143 462,399 462,399 0
b 15,695,591 § 15494.150 % 15,494,150 § 0
209,893 211,907 198,134 13,773
442,501 466,878 462,515 4,363
40,000 38,674 37,054 1,620
66,358 112,337 112,333 4
206,717 223,527 222292 1,235
563,197 618.566 618,406 160
102,400 273,305 271,393 1,912
85,740 104,843 104,700 143
145,234 184,309 183,199 1,110
368,258 380,272 333,419 46,833
135,962 140,354 112,174 28,180
184,782 227,303 226,050 1,253
525,090 662,154 661,203 951
244,965 294,446 294,264 182
41,350 47,350 45,336 2,014
13,992 10,299 6.910 3,389
175,461 193,174 188,453 4,721
95,850 98,283 96,366 1,917
45,389 58,074 57,785 239
66,347 68,957 67.342 1,615
66,240 73.088 72916 172
[2.275 12,781 12,751 30
156,846 157,273 143,257 14,016
81,210 88.763 87,548 1213
55,437 105,163 98,417 6.746
233,244 271912 265,417 6,495
56,373 56,633 56,256 377
52,519 32519 44,497 8.022
2,084,000 2,116,331 1,911,248 205,083
999,907 1,101,906 902,198 199.708
44,229 44,229 32,190 12,039
1,895 2,403 2,385 20
112,825 113,053 101,961 11,092
30,042 30,734 30,710 44
39,378 39.801 39,784 17
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)

Sheriff

Detention Center
Parole & Corrections
Solicitor's Office
Emergency Medical Services
Environmental Services
Social Service Agencies
Agencies

Senior Citizens
Recreation Department
Recycling Centers
Contingencies

Debt Service

Bond Issuance Costs

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In (Out)
Lease Purchase Proceeds

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCILS (USES) 5

FUND BALANCE, Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE, End of Year

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED AMOUNTS POSITIVE

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 1765432 8 2,131,046 $ 2,044.729 S 86,317
1,346,686 1,401,584 1,379,439 22,145
625 625 616 9
69,000 69,000 69.000 0
1,199,832 1,221.772 1,202,610 19,162
181,823 225617 204,425 21,192
103,684 103,684 103,684 0
344,898 344,898 344,898 0
111,500 111,500 111.500 0
437,157 551,277 442,933 108,344
518,555 571,285 538,480 32,805
13,098 925 0 925
38,000 31,308 30,631 677
0 10,000 10,000 0
3 13.916,196 $ 15,456,144 $ 14,583.808 % 872,336
$ 1,779.395 § 38,006 $ 910,342 $ 872,336
(1,779,395) (463,503) (199,874) 263,629
0 430,000 430,000 0
$ (1,779,395) $ (33,503) $ 230,126 $ 263,629
0 S 4503 $ 1,140,468 S 1,135,965

3,178,042
$ 4.318,510
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE
LANDFILL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES

Fees, Licenses & Permits b 515,000 § 484,674 § 478407 % (6.267)

Charges for Services 320,000 326,223 258,361 (67,862)

Other Revenues 210,400 135,677 147,261 11,584
TOTAL REVENUES $ 1,045,400 § 946,574 § 884,020 § (62,545}
EXPENDITURES

Environmental Services 994,648 895,822 570,860 324,962
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 004,648 § 895822 % 570,860 $ 324,962
EXCESS REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES $ 50,752 § 50,752 8 313,169 § 262,417
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers (Qut) {30,752) (50,752) 0 50,752

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES) $ (50,752) $ (50,752) § 03 50,752
EXCESS REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 0% 03 313,169 $ 313,169
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of Year 3.273,331
FUND BALANCE, End of Year 3 3.586.500




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
BUDGETARY COMPARISION SCHEDULE
RURAL FIRE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

o BUDGETED AMOUNTS POSITIVE
. ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
2
| Taxes $ 640,200 $ 622,830 $ 641,351 8 18,521
Other Revenues 19,400 49,700 35,300 (14.400)
1
| TOTAL REVENUES $ 659,600 $ 672,530 § 676,651 $ 4,121
| EXPENDITURES
Public Safety 570,735 582,530 650,207 (67,677)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 570,735 % 582,530 8 650,207 $ (67,677)
EXCESS REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES $ 88,865 § 90,000 $ 26,444 8 (63,556)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (Out) (88,865) (90,000) {90,000} 0
L TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCHES (USES) $ (88,865) $ (90,000) $ (90,000) $ 0
EXCESS REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
______ FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  § 0% 0 S (63,556) § (63,536)
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of Year 105,804
FUND BALANCE, End of Year $ 42,248
I
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
H NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

! NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Legal budgets are adopted for the
] tollowing major governmental funds: General Fund, Landfili Fund, and Rural Fire Fund.

The budget is prepared by the County Supervisor and the Budget Director and approved by the County Council. The appropriated
: budget is prepared by fund. function, department. activity and object and can be amended throughout the year by County Council
J approval. The County Supervisor may make transfers of appropriations within a function. Transfers of appropriations between
finds require the approval of the County Council. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level.

J The budgetary catendar is as follows:

February 17 - Packets distributed to elected officials, department heads, agency directors. and contribution agencies,

3 I March 17 - All packets returned to Budget Director,

" March 26 - County Supervisor, Budget Director and Clerk to Council submit computerized budget worksheets and department
i ] budgets to County Supervisor, Finance Committee and County Council.

Prior to June 30 - County Supervisor prepares a budget and submits it to County Council for appraval. County Council holds
| hearings to obtain taxpayers’ comments.

June 30 - Budget is legally adopted by ordinance.

June 30 - Final budget distributed to libraries, banks, ete.

NOTE 2 - BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS EXCEEDED

The County’s actual expenditures in the Rural Fire Fund exceeded the budgeted expenditures by $67.677.

1
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINES, ASSESSMENTS & SURCHARGES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

FINES AND FEES STATE PORTION

Public Defender Application Fees

Marriage License Fee

Circuit: Family Court Motion Fees
Family/Alimony:Child Support Fees
Circuit'Family Court Fines & Fees
Circuit/Family Court Filing Fees
Circuit'Famity Court Filing Fees [ncrease $50
Magistrate Filing Assessment Civil - 823
Magistrage Filing Assessment Civil - $10
Total State Portion Fines & Fees

DUL/DUS/BUT - ASSESSMENTS/SURCHARGES/PULLOUT

Magistrates' Court DUS DPS Pullout
Magistrates' DUI Assessment
Magistrates’ Court DUI Surcharge
Magistrates' Court DUI DPS Putlout
Total DUI Assessments State Portion

SURCHARGES STATE PORTION

General Sessions Court Drug Surcharge
Magistrates' Court Drug Surcharge

Generall Sessions Law Enforcement Surcharge
Magistrates' Court Law Enforcement Surcharges

OTHER ASSESSMENTS STATE PORTION
General Sessions Court

Magistrates’ Court
Total Other Assessments State Portion

VICTIM'S ASSISTANCE ASSESSMENTS COUNTY PORTION

General Sessions Court
Magistrates' Court
Toral Assessments County Portion s

SURCHARGES COUNTY PORTION

General Sessions Court
Magistrates' Court
Total Surcharges County Portion

7
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430
3.960
15.376
84.568
2134
+0.488
30.130
11,925
3,790

198.871
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Passed Through S.C. Departiment
of Social Services
Family Court
Clerk of Court
1V-D Incentives
Family Preservation
Temporary Assistance of Needy Families
Child Support Enforcement IVD
Child Welfare Services - State Grant
Title IV-E Foster Care
Social Services Block Grant
Child Care Development Grant

Passed Through Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Medicaid Programs

Passed Through State of S.C.
Department of Alcohol & Drug Abuse
Adcohol & Drug Abuse Grants

Passed Through S.C. Department of Rural Health
EMT - Intermediate Training

HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Pussed Through S.C. Departinent

of Commerce
Nasmith Morrisville Water Project
Sandridge Kingstree Easet Bridge Project

HOMELAND SECLRITY

Assistance to Fire Fighters

Passed Through SLED
LEMPG
LEMPG
LEMPG
Citizens Corp

39

FEDERAL  PASS THROUGH
CFDA  GRANTOR/AGENCY

NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
93.563 G-055C4004 $ 116434
93.563 G-055C4004 9.158
93.563 G-055C4004 32.944
93.556 N/A 2.827
93.558 N/A 58.165
93.563 N/A 49
93.643 N/A 3.801
93.658 NA 10.593
93.667 NAA 14,184
93.575 N/A 357
93.778 N/A 19.155
93.959 /A 162406
93.241 EMT-Intermediate 6.600
(1278 1-1-00-021 11.500
14.278 1-C1-06-012 190.800
97044 EMW-2007-FO-06-83 67327
97 042 TEMPGO2 17,044
97.042 JEMPGOI 31463
97.042 7JEMPGO] 18.342
Q7.067 GCCPOI 5.169




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLENA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

DEPARMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Passed Through S.C. Department
of Aeronautics
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program

Passed Through State of S.C.
Department of Transportation
Rural Transportation
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
2006 BJA Congressionally Mandated Grant
DEPARMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND

RURAL DEVELOPMENT

Passed Through State of S.C.
Summer Feeding Program

USDA Food Nutrition Services - Food Stamps

TOTALS

69

FEDERAL  PASS THROUGH

CFDA  GRANTOR/AGENCY
NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
20.106 3-45.0033-07 7170
20.106 3-45-0033-009 70.550
20.509 MT-81011-71 475.000
16.58 2006-DD-BX-0312 44435
10.559 SE-110 167.299
10.561 N/A 37.239
1875011




WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the grant activity of the Williamsburg County, South
Carolina and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented on. or used in the preparation of. the basic financial

statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Chairman and
Members of Williamsburg County Council
Kingstree, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business - type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for
Williamsburg County as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the County’s
basic financial statements and have issued our repost thereon dated January 30, 2009. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of Williamsburg
County Alcohol & Drug Abuse Commission’s special revenue fund, as described in our report on
Williamsburg County’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’
testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on
separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Williamsburg County’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Williamsburg
County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Williamsburg County’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal contro! over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
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on atimely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects Williamsburg County’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data
reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that a misstatement of Williamsburg County’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Williamsburg County’s internal control. We consider
the deficiencies 2008-B1 through 2008-B3 described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented

or detected by the County’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Williamsburg County’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was notan objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Govermment
Auditing Standards which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as

2008-B4.

However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported
to the management of Williamsburg County, in a separate letter dated January 30, 2009.

Williamsburg County’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the response and, accordingly, we express no

opinion ort it

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within
the organization, County Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

ﬁml foton « Mo . PA.

Harper, Poston & Moree, P.A.
Certitied Public Accountants

Georgetown, South Carolina
January 30, 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE

WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Chairman and
Members of Williamsburg County Council
Kingstree, South Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Williamsburg County, South Carolina with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement, that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2008. Williamsburg County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of
its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Williamsburg County’s management. Qur
responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Williamsburg County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicabie to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of State. Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about the Williamsburg County’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Williamsburg County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Williamsburg County, South Carolina complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year

ended June 30, 2008.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Williamsburg County, South Carolina is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of Williamsburg County’s internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or
combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal
program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented
or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deﬁc1en01es
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
others within the organization, County Council, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

,PW « Morea P A.

Harper, Poston & Moree, P.A.
Certitied Public Accountants

Georgetown, South Carolina
January 30, 2009
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2008

A - SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

L

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements of Williamsburg County.
South Carolina.

Thiee signiticant deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of the basic financial statements. of which none
were considered material weaknesses. as reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controf over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
One instance of non-compliance was disclosed during the audit of the financial statements.

No significant deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of the major federal award programs as reported in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to each Major Program and
Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Williamsburg County expresses an
unqualified opinion.

Audit findings relative to major federal award programs for Williamsburg County are reported in part C of this
schedule.

The programs tested as major programs included:

Prograin CDFA Number
Community Development Block Grant [4.228
Rural Transportation Grant 20.509

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $300,000.

Williamsburg County, South Carelina was not determined to be a low risk auditee.

B - FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Significant Deficiencies:

Finding 2008-B1: Financial statrement and note disclosure preparation

- . 5 . .
Condition: The County does not have a staff that can prepare the vear end t’N\mnma] statements and required note
disclosures in house,

Criteria: The County shouid have a staff that has the ability to prepare the year end financial statements and required note
disclosures.

Cause: Lack of trained personnel.
Effect: Significant Deficiency in internal controls.

Recommendation: We recommend that training be provided to staffon financial statement preparation and note disclosure.

Management Response: Management concurs with this recommendation
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

| [ B - FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Finding 2008-B2: Magistrate Office Financial [nternal Controls

Condition: Our audit disclosed that reconcited cash balances at month end are not routinely being reconciled to appropriate

supporting data.

| Criteria: Reconciled cash balance held by the magistrae office at month end should be reconciled to pending bonds. on
' hand. amounts due to County Treasuret. antounts due to the State of South Carolina, and Bond refunds due to bond payers.

Cause: Human error.

Effect: Internal controls over fines and bonds on hand were weakened.

! Recommendation; We recommend that a monthiy reconciliation be performed that reconciles the reconciled cash balance
to the amount of bonds on hand, the amount due to the County Treasurer. the amount due to the State of South Carolina

and the amount due to bond payers as refunds.

!
E J Management Response: Management concurs with this recommendation.

l | Finding 2008-B3: Fixed Asset Accounting

Condition: Depreciation schedules maintained by the county contained mathematical errors.

|
Criteria: Controls should be in place to assure that depreciation schedules are prepared and reviewed for errors such as

over depreciating assets and formula errors.

Cause: Human error,

Effect: Internal controls over fixed asset reporting were weakened.

Recommendation: We recommend that the County review depreciation schedules for errors such as over depreciating

assets and formula errors.

Management Response: Management concurs with this recommendation.

N i

Noncompliance:

] Findine 2008-B4: Collateralization of Deposits and [nvestnents

Finding: Adequate collateralization wus not pledged by financial institutions to insure balances in excess of FDIC timits,
|
|
= Criteria; State iaw mandates collateral be maintained on uninsured balances at financial institutions.

Cause: Human error.

Effect: Risk of loss of uninsured balances,

Recommendation: Management should periodically review pledged collateral to ensure all tfunds are collateralized.

Management response: We will monitor securities pledged to insure account balances.
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

: E C - FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

None Noted.
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WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

There were no prior year audit findings relating to federal award programs that are required by Circular A-133 to be
reported in the Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings.
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